
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DSHW-2016-013963 195 North 1950 West • Salt Lake City, UT  

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 144880 • Salt Lake City, UT  84114-4880 

Telephone (801) 536-0200 • Fax (801) 536-0222 • T.D.D. (801) 903-3978  

 www.deq.utah.gov 

Printed on 100% recycled paper 

State of Utah 
 

GARY R. HERBERT 

Governor 

 
SPENCER J. COX 

Lieutenant Governor 

Department of 

Environmental Quality 
 

Alan Matheson 

Executive Director 
 

DIVISION OF WASTE MANAGEMENT 

AND RADIATION CONTROL 
Scott T. Anderson 

Director 

 

 

A regular meeting of the Waste Management and Radiation Control Board has been scheduled for 

November 10, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. at the Utah Department of Environmental Quality, Multi-Agency State 

Office Building, Conference Room #1015, 195 North 1950 West, SLC. 

(One or more Board members may participate telephonically.) 
 

AGENDA 

 

I. Call to Order. 

 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes for the October 13, 2016 Board meeting 

(Board Action Item) ............................................................................................................... Tab 1 

 

III. Underground Storage Tanks Update ........................................................................................ Tab 2 

 

IV. Underground Storage Tank Rules ............................................................................................ Tab 3 

 

A. Final adoption of changes to Underground Storage Tank Rules R311-200, R311-201, 

R311-202, R311-206, and R311-212 (Board Action Item). 

 

B. Approval of a Change in Proposed Rule for R311-203 to incorporate comments made by 

the Environmental Protection Agency (Board Action Item). 

 

V. Low Level Radioactive Waste Section .................................................................................... Tab 4 

 

A. EnergySolutions LLC request for a site-specific treatment variance from the Hazardous 

Waste Management Rules.  EnergySolutions seeks authorization to receive Cemented 

Uranium Extraction Process Residues for disposal (Information Item Only). 

 

VI. Administrative Rules ............................................................................................................... Tab 5 

 

A. EnergySolutions’ Petition to Initiate Rulemaking to repeal and reenact R313-25 and 

adopt 10 CFR Part 61 by reference (Information Item Only).  

 

VII. X-Ray Program ........................................................................................................................ Tab 6 

 

A. Exemption request for the Sensus SRT-100 machine from the requirements of R313-30-

3(3), R313-30-3(4), R313-30-3-(5) and R313-30-3(6) (Board Action Item). 

(Over)  

alovato
Highlight

alovato
Highlight

alovato
Highlight

alovato
Highlight

alovato
Highlight

alovato
Highlight



VIII. Other Business. 

 

A. Misc. Information Items. 

B. Scheduling of next Board meeting. 

 

IX. Adjourn. 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals with special needs (including 

auxiliary communicative aids and services) should contact Dana Powers, Office of Human Resources at 

(801) 499-2117 TDD (801) 903-3978 or by email at dpowers@utah.gov. 



1 
 

Waste Management and Radiation Control Board Meeting 

Utah Department of Environmental Quality 

195 North 1950 West (Conference Room #1015) SLC, Utah 

October 13, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 

 

 

Board Members Present:  Brett Mickelson (Chair), Danielle Endres, Jeremy Hawk, Alan Matheson, 

Steve McIff and Vern Rogers 

 

Board Members Participating Telephonically:  Richard Codell and Mark Franc 

 

Board Members Absent:  Dennis Riding (Vice Chair), Shawn Milne and Shane Whitney 

 

Staff Members Present:  Scott Anderson, Brent Everett, Ralph Bohn, Doug Hansen, Arlene Lovato, 

Rusty Lundberg, Deborah Ng, Rick Page, Jerry Rogers, Elisa Smith, Don Verbica 

and Otis Willoughby 

 

Others Present:   Sawyer Hill, Tim Orton, Dan Shrum, Brent Snelgrove and Ashley Soltysiak  

 

Others Participating Telephonically:  Dr. Erik Natkin 

 

I. Call to Order. 

 

Brett Mickelson (Chair) welcomed all in attendance and called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. 

Shawn Milne and Shane Whitney were excused from the meeting.  Richard Codell, Mark Franc and 

Dr. Erik Natkin participated telephonically. 

 

II. Introduction of Nathan Rich – New Board Member 

 

Mr. Rich is the Executive Director of Wasatch Integrated Waste Management District which operates a 

Solid Waste Landfill and Waste to Energy Facility in Davis County.  Mr. Rich fills the vacancy left by 

Dwayne Woolley and serves as one of two non-federal government representatives on the Board.   

 

III. Approval of the Meeting Minutes for the September 8, 2016 Board Meeting. 

 

It was moved by Danielle Endres and seconded by Vern Rogers and UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED 

to approve the September 8, 2016 Board meeting minutes.  

 

IV. Underground Storage Tanks Update. 

 

Brent Everett, Director of the Division of Environmental Response and Remediation (DERR), informed 

the Board that the cash balance of the Petroleum Storage Tank (PST) Trust Fund at the end of 

August 2016 was $17,974,397.00.  The preliminary estimate for the cash balance of the PST Trust Fund 

for the end of September 2016 is $16,972,968.00.  The cash balance of the PST Trust Fund is watched 

closely to ensure sufficient funds are available in the PST Trust Fund.  There were no questions on the 

PST Trust Fund balance. 

 

 

 



2 
 

V. Administrative Rules. 

 

A. Final adoption of repeal of Rule R313-27, “Medical Use Advisory Committee” 

(Board Action Item). 

 

Ralph Bohn, Section Manager, Planning and Technical Support Section, reviewed the request to approve 

the repeal of Rule R313-27 “Medical Use Advisory Committee” and set an effective date. 

 

R313-27 was adopted by the Radiation Control Board in its final meeting in June 2015.  This rule 

requires the Board to appoint a Medical Use Advisory Committee to review any rule or other policy that 

affects the medical use of radiation and to make a recommendation to the Board on the proposed rule.  

The rule establishes the makeup of the committee and requires the committee to report to the Board 

prior to any Board action on a rule related to the medical use of radiation. 

 

The Attorney General’s Office has determined that the Radiation Control Board did not have the 

authority to promulgate R313-27.  (See memorandum from Craig Anderson, Assistant Attorney General, 

that was provided in the July 14, 2016 Board packet). 

 

The proposed repeal of R313-27 was published in the September 1, 2016 Utah Bulletin.  Comments 

received along with the letter sent to the Board prior to the July 14, 2016 meeting were included in the 

October 13, 2016 Board packet.  The Director’s response to the comments on the proposed repeal of 

R313-27 was provided to the Board in a separate e-mail document, dated October 12, 2016. 

 

Alan Matheson, Executive Director, Department of Environmental Quality explained that the proposal 

to repeal R313-27 arises from a technical legal concern about the Board’s authority to create the Medical 

Use Advisory Committee, not from any failure to recognize its value.   

 

Mr. Matheson stated that, because the Board and Division staff do not have expertise in every issue that 

comes before the Board, the goal is to establish a workable and legal mechanism to ensure the Board 

and staff have sound information on medical radiation before making decisions in that area.  However, 

because the Attorney General’s Office has determined that the Board did not have the legal authority to 

promulgate a rule to create a Medical Advisory Committee, the UDEQ now has to be compliant with the 

law and act within its authorities.  The UDEQ has every intention of identifying appropriate ways to 

gather input on the medical use of radiation.  At this time, the matter at hand has to address the legal 

authority of the Board and the request to approve the repeal of Rule R313-27.   

 

It was moved by Steve McIff and seconded by Nathan Rich and carried for the Board to approve 

the repeal of R313-27.  Brett Mickelson, Danielle Endres, Mark Franc, Jeremy Hawk, 

Alan Matheson and Vern Rogers voted in favor of the motion.  Richard Codell voted against the 

motion.  

Richard Codell noted that all comments received were against the repeal of R313-27 and felt that an 

alternative should be in place to ensure matters are handled adequately in the future.   

 

Vern Rogers stated that, as he read the information/comments from last year, it was determined that the 

Board had the authority to create R313-27.  Mr. Rogers asked if it is common to have opposing opinions 

from the Attorney General’s Office.   

 

Mr. Bohn stated that the legal opinion at the time the rule was promulgated was based on a similar 

provision enacted by the Water Quality Board.  The Attorney General’s Office has researched that rule 



3 
 

and also determined that the Water Quality Board will have to withdraw its rule.  The Division of Water 

Quality has been notified that their rule did not have a legal basis and will have to be repealed. 

 

Danielle Endres asked if the Division has any plans to make a more formalized committee as Board 

members would like participation by experts when they desire it.  Mr. Matheson stated that the 

Department can establish committees and he is open to that idea.  However, there are some 

complications with that concept, such as deciding which issues need what outside expertise, if any, or 

creating committees with lots of people but without having any issues for months or years.  There are a 

number of other ways to gather input and the exact form it takes may vary, but the fundamental principle 

is finding the best way to get the most relevant information for the Board before a decision is made.  

Mr. Matheson asked for ideas other than just a formalized committee. 

 

Richard Codell suggested a medical use advisory group could be formed to be available when needed; 

but not place an undue burden on the State of Utah.  Mr. Matheson reiterated his openness to 

recommendations from the Board for his consideration.     

 

Scott Baird, Director of Legislative and Government Affairs, Utah Department of Environmental 

Quality, informed that Board that he has been involved in discussions with Mr. Peter Jenkins on this 

matter and committed to sit down with Mr. Jenkins and others to see what solutions could be considered. 

 

VI. Used Oil Program. 

 

A. Approval to proceed with formal rulemaking and 30-day public comment period for Used Oil 

Rule, R315-15-13 (Board Action Item).  

 

Deborah Ng, Hazardous Waste Section Manager, reviewed the request for the Board to approve for 

publication in the Utah Bulletin and commencement of a 30-day public comment period, the proposed 

changes to the Used Oil Rule, R315-15-13. 

 

R315-15-13 is the section of the Used Oil Program Rules that covers the registration and permitting of 

used oil handlers.   

 

Subsection R315-15-13.4(f) allows generators of used oil to transport quantities exceeding 55 gallons 

under a permit by rule.  The permit by rule exemption is limited to facilities that fall within certain North 

American Industry Classification System codes.   

 

The Division has been approached by Rocky Mountain Power asking if the utilities sector code could be 

added to the list in the rule.  Rocky Mountain Power generates large amounts of used oil, some of which 

is located in remote locations where it is difficult or impossible to get a used oil transporter to pick up 

the oil.   

 

This change would allow the utility to transport its own oil under permit by rule.  The change also 

updates the reference to the current version of the North American Industry Classification System. 

 

It was moved by Nathan Rich and seconded by Danielle Endres and UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED 

to approval to proceed with formal rulemaking and 30-day public comment period for Used Oil 

Rule, R315-15-13. 

 

Danielle Endres asked if the utilities transporting their used oil themselves will be held to the same 

standards as others transporters.  Ms. Ng explained that they would need to meet the same standards.  



4 
 

Ms. Endres also asked if there is any higher risk in allowing them to transport it on their own.  Ms. Ng 

said no.  

 

Richard Codell asked if the oil contained PCBs.  Ms. Ng explained that the oil does contain PCBs but 

the concentration is less than 50 ppm.  Transporting oil with PCBs over 50 ppm would subject the 

transporter to other TSCA requirements. 

 

VII. X-Ray Program. 

 

A. Request for Exclusion from certain requirements of R313-28-31(5) (Board Action Item). 

 

Ralph Bohn informed the Board that Dr. Erik Natkin has requested an exemption from Rule R313-28-

31(5).  This rule governs the use of x-rays in the healing arts and reads:  “Portable or mobile equipment 

shall be used only for examinations where it is impractical to transfer the patient to a stationary 

radiographic installation.” 

 

The basis for the exemption request was provided in a letter to the Director received September 2, 2016.  

The letter was included in the October 13, 2016 Board packet.  The Division requested comments on the 

exemption request from several radiation safety officers and other health care professionals in the state.  

No comments were received. 

 

Mr. Bohn recommended that the Board grant the exemption with the following language in the motion 

for approval:  “The request of Dr. Erik Natkin for an exemption from R313-28-31(5) is granted.  The 

exemption has no expiration date.  The exemption granted by the Board is from the requirements of 

R313-28-31(5) only and not from any other applicable part of R313-28, including the plan review 

requirements of R313-28-32, the operator protection requirements of R313-28-52(8)(b) and the source-

to-skin distance limit of R313-28-53.”   

 

Mr. Bohn noted that two other machines in the State of Utah like this have been grandfathered into the 

rules.   

 

Dr. Erik Natkin explained his reasons for the exemption request and his intent to position and use this 

device in a designated shielded room, practically making it a stationary device and thus compliant with 

potential radiation exposure management dictated by Utah Code. 

 

It was moved by Steve McIff and seconded by Jeremy Hawk and UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED to 

approve Dr. Natkin’s request for exclusion from certain requirements of R313-28-31 (5).  

Specifically, this approval is only for using a portable machine in a permanent location.  

Dr. Natkin is subject to all other requirements of R313-28-31(5). 

 

VIII. Other Business. 

A. Misc. Information Items. – None to Report. 

B. Scheduling of next Board meeting. 

 

The next Board meeting is scheduled for November 10, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. at the Utah Department of 

Environmental Quality, 195 North 1950 West, Salt Lake City, Utah. 

 

IX. Adjourn. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 2:04 p.m. 



UST STATISTICAL SUMMARY
October 1, 2015 -- September 30, 2016

PROGRAM 
October November December January February March April May June July August September (+/-) OR Total

Regulated Tanks 4,000 3,989 3,991 4,003 4,007 4,006 4,015 4,017 4,019 4,015 4,035 4,052 52

Tanks with Certificate of 
Compliance 3,889 3,887 3,887 3,916 3,919 3,917 3,911 3,916 3,919 3,916 3,935 3,919 30

Tanks without COC 111 102 104 87 88 89 104 101 100 99 100 133 22

Cumulative Facilitlies with 
Registered A Operators 1,334 1,333 1,332 1,333 1,333 1,332 1,332 1,324 1,327 1,325 1,320 1,315 97.05%

Cumulative Facilitlies with 
Registered B Operators 1,335 1,334 1,333 1,334 1,334 1,333 1,333 1,325 1,328 1,326 1,320 1,316 97.12%

New LUST Sites 5 4 6 3 4 10 13 4 8 7 5 7 76

Closed LUST Sites 9 7 10 9 3 10 2 14 4 11 12 11 102

Cumulative Closed LUST 
Sites 4857 4859 4867 4878 4886 4889 4892 4905 4913 4921 4932 4942 85

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            FINANCIAL
October November December January February March April May June July August September (+/-)

Tanks on PST Fund 2,844 2,840 2,840 2,763 2,766 2,764 2,758 2,752 2,751 2,753 2,757 2,741 (103)

PST Claims (Cumulative) 648 649 647 647 649 649 649 651 651 655 655 655 7

Equity Balance -$7,663,788 -$7,186,058 -$7,441,692 -$7,435,326 -$7,180,546 -$7,535,427 -$7,425,420 -$8,031,463 -$6,636,622 -$7,375,813 -$7,326,360 -$8,286,855 ($623,067)

Cash Balance $16,357,660 $16,835,389 $16,406,467 $16,412,833 $16,667,613 $16,375,040 $16,422,739 $17,142,184 $17,376,517 $17,213,545 $17,974,397 $16,972,968 $615,308

Loans 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0

Cumulative Loans 105 105 107 107 108 108 108 108 110 111 111 111 6

Cumulative Amount $3,727,980 $3,727,980 $3,889,300 $3,889,300 $3,911,924 $3,911,924 $3,911,924 $3,911,924 $4,039,774 $4,069,774 $4,069,774 $4,069,774 $341,794

Defaults/Amount 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

                               
October November December January February March April May June July August September TOTAL

Speed Memos 52 38 20 18 10 49 49 61 32 53 52 47 481

Compliance Letters 14 3 6 13 1 5 0 8 7 8 3 9 77

Notice of Intent to Revoke 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Orders 1 0 0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 0 1 9



Utah Waste Management and Radiation Control Board Action Item 
Proposed changes to R311, Utah Underground Storage Tank Rules 

Final Adoption and Change in Proposed Rule 
 
 
The Division of Environmental Response and Remediation (DERR) requests that the Utah Waste 
Management and Radiation Control Board approve proposed changes to the Utah Underground 
Storage Tank (UST) rules for final adoption and, for R311-203, a Change in Proposed Rule. 
 
 
Background: 
 
On September 8, 2016, the Board approved proposed changes to the Utah Underground Storage 
Tank rules for publication and public comment.  The proposed changes incorporate by reference 
new Federal UST regulations that became effective on October 13, 2015, make changes to the Utah 
rules to administer the Federal regulations, simplify the Utah rules, and remove rule wording that is 
redundant or no longer applies. 
 
The rules to be amended are: 
R311-200, Underground Storage Tanks:  Definitions. 
R311-201, Underground Storage Tanks:  Certification Programs and UST Operator Training. 
R311-202, Underground Storage Tank Technical Standards. 
R311-203, Underground Storage Tanks:  Technical Standards. 
R311-206, Underground Storage Tanks:  Certificate of Compliance and Financial Assurance 
Mechanisms. 
R311-212, Administration of the Petroleum Storage Tank Loan Program. 
 
Notice of the proposed changes and the public comment period was sent to UST owner/operators, 
certified individuals, and other persons interested in UST rulemaking, and was published in major 
newspapers throughout the state. 
 
The proposed changes were published in the Utah State Bulletin on October 1, 2016.  The public 
comment period was held October 1, 2016 to October 31, 2016, and a public hearing to receive 
comments on the proposed changes was held on October 17, 2016. 
 
One comment was received during the public comment period.  US EPA Region 8 commented on 
R311-203-7, the operator inspection rule, stating that subsection R311-203-7(c) may result in Utah's 
operator inspection rule being less stringent than the Federal regulations, thereby endangering 
Utah's State Program Approval.  R311-203-7(c) provides for approval by the Division Director for a 
facility to have operator inspections conducted less frequently in situations where it is impractical to 
conduct the inspections every 30 days.  Because the new Federal regulations require inspections 
every 30 days, keeping subsection (c) could result in Utah's rule being considered less stringent than 
the Federal regulations. 
 
The Division requests that the Board approve a Change in Proposed Rule for R311-203, with 
Subsection R311-203-7(c) to be removed.  If the Change in Proposed Rule is approved by the 



Board, the change would be published in the Utah State Bulletin on December 1, 2016, and the rule 
could be effective 30 days later.   
 
The text of the proposed change to R311-203 is attached, with the Change in Proposed Rule form 
that will be submitted to the Division of Administrative Rules.  The previous proposed changes to 
R311-203 are shown as if they had become effective, and the new changes are shown in the rule 
text. Wording to be removed is struck out, and wording to be added is underlined. 
 
 
Please note:  Because the end of the public comment period is only a few days before the date the 
Board packet information is sent to the Board members, it is possible that a comment postmarked 
by October 31, 2016 could be received by the DERR after the Board packet is sent.  If this occurs, 
the comment and a DERR staff response will be forwarded to Board members electronically before 
the November Board meeting. 
 
 
 Action Items: 
 
1)  The Division of Environmental Response and Remediation requests that the Utah Waste 
Management and Radiation Control Board adopt the proposed changes to R311-200, R311-201, 
R311-202, R311-206, and R311-212.  It is requested that the effective date of the new rules be 
January 1, 2017. 
 
2)  The Division requests that the Board approve a Change in Proposed Rule for R311-203, with 
publication date to be December 1, 2016 and the effective date of the changed rule to be January 1, 
2017. 



NOTICE OF
CHANGE IN PROPOSED RULE

The agency identified below in box 1 provides notice of proposed rule change pursuant to Utah Code
Section 63G-3-301.
Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the agency.
The full text of all rule filings is published in the Utah State Bulletin unless excluded because of space
constraints.
The full text of all rule filings may also be inspected at the Office of Administrative Rules.

Rule Information

DAR file no: 40755 Date filed:
State Admin Rule Filing Key: 158069
Utah Admin. Code ref. (R no.): R311-203

Agency Information

1. Agency:
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY - Environmental Response and
Remediation

Room no.: First Floor
Building:
Street address 1: 195 N 1950 W
Street address 2:
City, state, zip: SALT LAKE CITY UT 84116-3085
Mailing address 1: PO BOX 144840
Mailing address 2:
City, state, zip: SALT LAKE CITY UT 84114-4840

Contact person(s):

Name: Phone: Fax: E-mail: Remove:
Gary Astin 801-536-4103 801-359-8853 gastin@utah.gov
(Interested persons may inspect this filing at the above address or at DAR during business hours)

Rule Title

2. Title of rule or section (catchline):
Underground Storage Tanks: Technical Standards.

http://www.erules.rules.utah.gov/erules/secure/ruleFilingEdit.action?rule...

1 of 6 11/1/2016 9:30 AM



Notice Type

3. Type of notice: Change in Proposed Rule
Changes DAR No.: 40755
(If you do not know the DAR no., call 801-538-3218.)

Rule Purpose

4. Purpose of the rule or reason for the change:
During public comment for proposed changes to R311-203, a comment was received that indicated
that subsection R311-203-7(c) contains language that may conflict with requirements for Utah to
maintain state program approval of its underground storage tank (UST) regulatory program. The
conflicting language provides for underground storage tank operator inspections to be performed
less frequently than every 30 days in situations where it is impractical to conduct the inspections
every 30 days. The conflicting language is now removed from the rule to eliminate the possibility
that it could cause Utah to lose state program approval.

Response Information

5. This change is a response to comments by the Administrative Rules Review Committee.

No Yes

Rule Summary

6. Summary of the rule or change:
Subsection R311-203-7(c) is removed from the rule.

http://www.erules.rules.utah.gov/erules/secure/ruleFilingEdit.action?rule...

2 of 6 11/1/2016 9:30 AM



Aggregate Cost Information

7. Aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:
A) State budget:

Affected: No Yes
No cost or savings. The state, as an owner of USTs, has not been approved for a reduced inspection
schedule for any of its UST facilities, so there will be no change in the state's inspections costs.
B) Local government:

Affected: No Yes
No cost or savings. No local governments that own USTs have been approved for a reduced
inspection schedule for any of their UST facilities, so there will be no change in their inspections
costs.
C) Small businesses:

Affected: No Yes
("small business" means a business employing fewer than 50 persons)
No cost or savings. No small businesses that own USTs have been approved for a reduced inspection
schedule for any of their UST facilities, so there will be no change in their inspections costs.
D) Persons other than small businesses, businesses, or local government entities:

Affected: No Yes
("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental
entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an agency)
No cost or savings. No UST owners have been approved for a reduced inspection schedule for any
of their UST facilities, so there will be no change in their inspections costs.

Compliance Cost Information

8. Compliance costs for affected persons:
No compliance costs. No UST owners have to date been approved for a reduced schedule of
operator inspections, so there will be no cost for them to continue to perform inspections as they are
already doing them. If an UST owner had received approval for a reduced inspection schedule, the
cost required to begin performing the inspections every 30 days would depend on the number of
additional inspections required. The most likely scenario would be a UST facility in a mountainous
area, that is not easily accessed during the winter. If four additional inspections were required for the
winter months, the increased cost would be approximately $500 to $700 per year, depending on the
individual characteristics of the UST site and the available resources of the UST owner to provide
access to the UST facility.

http://www.erules.rules.utah.gov/erules/secure/ruleFilingEdit.action?rule...

3 of 6 11/1/2016 9:30 AM



Department Head Comments

9. A) Comments by the department head on the fiscal impact the rule may have on businesses:
The fiscal impact of this rule change will be minor. There are a handful of UST sites in the state that
are likely to be inaccessible or have another situation where a monthly inspection would be
impractical. No tank owners have been granted an exemption from doing the inspections each
month. Removing the ability to grant the exemption will only mean that UST owners and operators
will continue to do the inspections monthly, so fiscal impacts to tank owners will be minimal.
B) Name and title of department head commenting on the fiscal impacts:
Alan Matheson, Executive Director

Citation Information

10. This rule change is authorized or mandated by state law, and implements or interprets the following
state and federal laws.
State code or constitution citations (required) (e.g., Section 63G-3-402; Subsection 63G-3-601(3);
Article IV) :
19-6-403, 19-6-105, 19-6-408

Incorporated Materials

11. This rule adds, updates, or removes the following title of materials incorporated by reference (a copy
of materials incorporated by reference must be submitted to DAR; if none, leave blank) :

Official Title of Materials Incorporated (from title page)
Publisher

Date Issued (mm/dd/yyyy)
Issue, or version (including partial dates)

ISBN Number
ISSN Number

Cost of Incorporated Reference
Adds, updates, removes-- SELECT ONE --

http://www.erules.rules.utah.gov/erules/secure/ruleFilingEdit.action?rule...

4 of 6 11/1/2016 9:30 AM



Comments

12. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. (The public may
also request a hearing by submitting a written request to the agency. The agency is required to hold a
hearing if it receives requests from ten interested persons or from an association having not fewer
than ten members. Additionally, the request must be received by the agency not more than 15 days
after the publication of this rule in the Utah State Bulletin. See Section 63G-3-302 and Rule R15-1
for more information.)
A) Comments will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. on (mm/dd/yyyy) : 12/30/2016
B) A public hearing (optional) will be held:

On (mm/dd/yyyy): At (hh:mm
AM/PM): At (place):

Proposed Effective Date

13. This rule change may become effective on (mm/dd/yyyy): 01/01/2017
NOTE: The date above is the date on which this rule MAY become effective. It is NOT the effective
date. After a minimum of seven days following the date designated in Box 12(A) above, the agency
must submit a Notice of Effective Date to the Office of Administrative Rules to make this rule
effective. Failure to submit a Notice of Effective Date will result in this rule lapsing and will require
the agency to start the rulemaking process over.

Indexing Information

14. Indexing information - keywords (maximum of four, one term per field, in lower case, except for
acronyms (e.g., "GRAMA") or proper nouns (e.g., "Medicaid")):
fees, petroleum, hazardous substances, underground storage tanks

File Information

15. Attach an RTF document containing the text of this rule change (filename):
No document is associated with this filing.

To the Agency

Information requested on this form is required by Sections 63G-3-301, 302, 303, and 402. Incomplete
forms will be returned to the agency for completion, possibly delaying publication in the Utah State
Bulletin, and delaying the first possible effective date.

http://www.erules.rules.utah.gov/erules/secure/ruleFilingEdit.action?rule...

5 of 6 11/1/2016 9:30 AM



Agency Authorization

Agency head or designee, and
title:

Brent Everett
Director Date (mm/dd/yyyy): 11/01/2016

http://www.erules.rules.utah.gov/erules/secure/ruleFilingEdit.action?rule...

6 of 6 11/1/2016 9:30 AM



R311.  Environmental Quality, Environmental Response and Remediation. 
R311-203.  Underground Storage Tanks:  Technical Standards. 
R311-203-1.  Definitions. 
 Definitions are found in Rule R311-200. 
 
R311-203-2.  Notification. 
 (a)  The owner or operator of an underground storage tank shall notify the Director whenever: 
 (1)  new USTs are brought into use; 
 (2)  the owner or operator changes; 
 (3)  changes are made to the tank or piping system; and 
 (4)  release detection, corrosion protection, or spill or overfill prevention systems are installed, 
changed or upgraded. 
 (b)  All notifications shall be submitted on the current approved notification form. 
 (c)  Notifications submitted to meet the requirements of R311-203-2(a)(1) through (4) shall be 
submitted within 30 days of the completion of the work or the change of ownership. 
 (d)  To satisfy the requirement of Subsection 19-6-407(1)(c) the certified installer shall: 
 (1)  complete the appropriate section of the notification form to be submitted by the owner or 
operator, and ensure that the notification form is submitted by the owner or operator within 30 days of 
completion of the installation; or 
 (2)  provide separate notification to the Director within 60 days of the completion of the installation. 
 
R311-203-3.  New Installations, Permits. 
 (a)  Certified UST installers shall notify the Director at least 10 days, or another time period approved 
by the Director, before commencing any of the following activities: 
 (1)  the installation of a full UST system or tank only; 
 (2)  the installation of underground product piping for one or more tanks at a facility, separate from 
the installation of one or more tanks at a facility; 
 (3)  the internal lining of a previously-existing tank; 
 (4)  the installation of a cathodic protection system on one or more previously-existing tanks at a 
facility; 
 (5)  the installation of a bladder in a tank; 
 (6)  any retro-fit, replacement, or installation that requires the cutting of a manway into the tank; 
 (7)  the installation of a spill prevention or overfill prevention device; 
 (8)  the installation of a leak detection monitoring system; and 
 (9)  the installation of a containment sump or under-dispenser containment. 
 (b)  The UST installation company shall submit to the Director an UST installation permit fee of $200 
when any of the activities listed in R311-203-3(a)(1) through (6) is performed on an UST system that has not 
qualified for a certificate of compliance before the commencement of the work. 
 (c)  The fees assessed under 19-6-411(2)(a)(i) shall be determined based on the number of full UST 
installations performed by the installation company in the 12 months previous to the fee due date.  
Installations for which the fee assessed under 19-6-411(2)(a)(ii) and R311-203-3(c) is charged shall count 
toward the total installations for the 12-month period. 
 (d)  For the purposes of Subsections 19-6-411(2)(a)(ii), 19-6-407(1)(c), and R311-203-2(d), an 
installation shall be considered complete when: 
 (1)  in the case of installation of a new UST system, tank only, or product piping only, the new 
installation first holds a regulated substance; or 
 (2)  in the case of installation of the components listed in Subsections R311-203-3(a)(3) through 
(a)(6), the new installation is functional and the UST holds a regulated substance and is operational. 
 (e)  If, before completion of an installation for which an UST installation permit fee is required, the 
owner or operator decides to install additional UST system components, the installer shall notify the Director 
of the change.  When additions are made, the UST installation permit fee shall not be increased unless the 



original UST installation permit fee would have been higher had the addition been considered at the time the 
original fee was determined. 
 (f)  The number of UST installation companies performing work on a particular installation shall not 
be a factor in determining the UST installation permit fee for that installation.  However, each installation 
company shall identify itself at the time the UST installation permit fee is paid. 
 (g)  When a new UST system, tank only, product piping only, or new cathodic protection system is 
installed, the owner or operator shall submit to the Director an as-built drawing, to scale, that meets the 
requirements of R311-200-1(b)(2). 
 
R311-203-4.  Underground Storage Tank Registration Fee. 
 (a)  Registration fees shall be assessed by the Department against all tanks which are not permanently 
closed for the entire fiscal year, and shall be billed per facility. 
 (b)  Registration fees shall be due on July 1 of the fiscal year for which the assessment is made, or, for 
underground storage tanks brought into use after the beginning of the fiscal year, underground storage tank 
registration fees shall be due when the tanks are brought into use, as a requirement for receiving a certificate of 
compliance. 
 (c)  The Director may waive all or part of the penalty assessed under Subsection 19-6-408(5) if no 
fuel has been dispensed from the tank on or after July 1, 1991 and if the tank has been properly closed 
according to Rules R311-204 and R311-205, or in other circumstances as approved by the Director. 
 (d)  The Director shall issue a certificate of registration to owners or operators for individual 
underground storage tanks at a facility if: 
 (1)  the tanks are in use or are temporarily closed according to 40 CFR Part 280 Subpart G; and, 
 (2)  the underground storage tank registration fee has been paid. 
 (e)  Pursuant to 19-6-408(5)(c), all past due registration fees, late payment penalties and interest must 
be paid before the Director may issue or re-issue a certificate of compliance regardless of whether there is a 
new owner or operator at the facility.  However, the Director may decline active collection of past due 
registration fees, late payment penalties and interest if a certificate of compliance is not issued and the new 
owner or new operator properly closes the underground storage tanks within one year of becoming the new 
owner or operator of the facility. 
 (f)  An underground storage tank will be assessed the higher registration fee established under Section 
63J-1-504 if it is found to be out of significant operational compliance with leak prevention or leak detection 
requirements during an inspection, and remains out of compliance for six months or greater following the 
initial inspection.  The higher registration fee shall be due July 1 following the documented six-month period 
of non-compliance.  A tank will be out of significant operational compliance if it fails to meet any of the 
significant operational compliance measures stated in the EPA compliance measures matrices incorporated by 
Subsection R311-206-10(b)(1). 
 (g)  When the Director is notified of the existence of a previously un-registered regulated UST, the 
Director shall assess the registration fee for the current fiscal year.  If the UST is properly permanently closed 
within 90 days of the notification of the existence of the UST, the Director may decline active collection of 
past-due registration fees, late payment penalties, and interest for previous fiscal years. 
 
R311-203-5.  UST Testing Requirements. 
 (a)  Tank tightness testing.  The testing method must be able to test the UST system at the maximum 
level that could contain regulated substances.  Tanks with overfill prevention devices that prevent product 
from entering the upper portion of the tank may be tested at the maximum level allowed by the overfill device. 
 (b)  Spill prevention equipment.  An individual who conducts a test of spill prevention equipment to 
meet the requirements of 40 CFR 280.35(a)(1)(ii) shall report the test results using: 
 (1) the form "Utah Spill Prevention Test", or 
 (2) the form "Appendix C-3  Spill Bucket Integrity Testing Hydrostatic Test Method  Single and 
Double-Walled Vacuum Test Method", found in PEI RP1200, "Recommended Practices for the Testing and 
Verification of Spill, Overfill, Leak Detection and Secondary Containment Equipment at UST Facilities", or 



 (3)  another form approved by the Director. 
 (c)  Containment sump testing.  An individual who conducts a test of a containment sump used for 
interstitial monitoring to meet the requirements of 40 CFR 280.35(a)(1)(ii) or a test of a piping containment 
sump or under-dispenser containment to meet the requirements of R311-206-11 shall report the test results 
using: 
 (1)  the form "Utah Containment Sump Test", or 
 (2)  the form "Appendix C-4 Containment Sump Integrity Testing  Hydrostatic Testing Method", 
found in PEI RP1200, or 
 (3)  another form approved by the Director. 
 (d)  When a sump sensor is used as an automatic line leak detector, the secondary containment sump 
shall be tested for tightness annually according to the manufacturer's guidelines or standards, or by another 
method approved by the Director.  The sensor shall be located as close as is practicable to the lowest portion of 
the sump. 
 (e)  Cathodic protection testing.  Cathodic protection tests shall meet the inspection criteria outlined 
in 40 CFR 280.31(b), or other criteria approved by the Director.  The tester who performs the test shall provide 
the following information:  location of at least three test points per tank, location of one remote test point for 
galvanic systems, test results in volts or millivolts, pass/fail determination for each tank, line, flex connector, or 
other UST system component tested, the criteria by which the pass/fail determination is made, and a site plat 
showing locations of test points.  A re-test of any cathodic protection system is required within six months of 
any below-grade work that may harm the integrity of the system. 
 (f)  UST testers performing tank and line tightness testing shall include the following as part of the 
test report:  pass/fail determination for each tank or line tested, the measured leak rate, the test duration, the 
product level for tank tests, the pressure used for pressure tests, the type of test, and the test equipment used. 
 
R311-203-6.  Secondary Containment and Under-dispenser Containment. 
 (a)  Secondary containment for tanks and piping. 
 (1)  To meet the requirements of Section 42 USC 6991b(i) of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, all tanks 
and product piping that are installed as part of an underground storage tank system after October 1, 2008 and 
before January 1, 2017 shall have secondary containment if the installation is located 1000 feet or less from an 
existing community water system or an existing potable drinking water well. 
 (2)  The secondary containment installed under Subsection (a) shall meet the requirements of 40 CFR 
280.42(b), and shall be monitored monthly for releases from the tank and piping.  Monthly monitoring shall 
meet the requirements of 40 CFR 280.43(g). 
 (3)  Containment sumps for piping that is installed under Subsection (a) shall be required: 
 (A)  at the submersible pump or other location where the piping connects to the tank; 
 (B)  where the piping connects to a dispenser, or otherwise goes above-ground; and 
 (C)  where double-walled piping that is required under Subsection (a) connects with existing piping. 
 (4)  Containment sumps for piping that is installed under Subsection (a) shall: 
 (A)  contain submersible pumps, check valves, unburied risers, flexible connectors, and other 
transitional components that connect the piping to the tank, dispenser, or existing piping; and 
 (B)  meet the requirements of Subsections (b)(2)(A) through (C). 
 (5)  In the case of a replacement of tank or piping, only the portion of the UST system being replaced 
shall be subject to the requirements of Subsection (a).  If less than 100 percent of the piping from a tank to a 
dispenser is replaced, the requirements of Subsection (a) shall apply to all new product piping that is installed.  
The closure requirements of R311-205 shall apply to all product piping that is taken out of service.  When new 
piping is connected to existing piping that is not taken out of service, the connection between the new and 
existing piping shall be secondarily contained, and shall be monitored for releases according to 40 CFR 
280.43(g). 
 (6)  The requirements of Subsection (a) shall not apply to: 
 (A)  piping that meets the requirements for "safe suction" piping in 40 CFR 280.41(b)(2)(i) through 
(v), or 



 (B)  piping that connects two or more tanks to create a siphon system. 
 (7)  The requirements of Subsection (a) shall apply to emergency generator USTs installed after 
October 1, 2008. 
 (b)  Under-dispenser containment. 
 (1)  To meet the requirements of Section 42 USC 6991b(i) of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, all new 
motor fuel dispenser systems installed after October 1, 2008 and before January 1, 2017, and connected to an 
underground storage tank, shall have under-dispenser containment if the installation is located 1000 feet or less 
from an existing community water system or an existing potable drinking water well. 
 (2)  The under-dispenser containment shall: 
 (A)  be liquid-tight on its sides, bottom, and at all penetrations; 
 (B)  be compatible with the substance conveyed by the piping; and 
 (C)  allow for visual inspection and access to the components in the containment system, or shall be 
continuously monitored for the presence of liquids. 
 (3)  If an existing dispenser is replaced, the requirements of Subsection (b) shall apply to the new 
dispenser if any equipment used to connect the dispenser to the underground storage tank system is replaced.  
This equipment includes unburied flexible connectors, risers, and other transitional components that are 
beneath the dispenser and connect the dispenser to the product piping. 
 (c)  The requirements of Subsections (a) and (b) shall not apply if the installation is located more than 
1000 feet from an existing community water system or an existing potable drinking water well. 
 (1)  The UST owner or operator shall provide to the Director documentation to show that the 
requirements of Subsections (a) and (b) to not apply to the installation.  The documentation shall be provided 
at least 60 days before the beginning of the installation, and shall include: 
 (A)  a detailed to-scale map of the proposed installation that demonstrates that no part of the 
installation is within 1000 feet of any community water system, potable drinking water well, or any well the 
owner or operator plans to install at the facility, and 
 (B)  a certified statement by the owner or operator explaining who researched the existence of a 
community water system or potable drinking water well, how the research was conducted, and how the 
proposed installation qualifies for an exemption from the requirements of Subsections (a) and (b). 
 (d)  To determine whether the requirements of Subsections (a) and (b) apply, the distance from the 
UST installation to an existing community water system or existing potable drinking water well shall be 
measured from the closest part of the new underground tank, piping, or motor fuel dispenser system to: 
 (1)  the closest part of the nearest community water system, including: 
 (A)  the location of the wellheads for groundwater and/or the location of the intake points for surface 
water; 
 (B)  water lines, processing tanks, and water storage tanks; and 
 (C)  water distribution/service lines under the control of the community water system operator, or 
 (2)  the wellhead of the nearest existing potable drinking water well. 
 (e)  If a new underground storage tank facility is installed, and is not within 1000 feet of an existing 
community water system or an existing potable drinking water well, the requirements of Subsections (a) and 
(b) apply if the owner or operator installs a potable drinking water well at the facility that is within 1000 feet of 
the underground tanks, piping, or motor fuel dispenser system, regardless of the sequence of installation of the 
UST system, dispenser system, and well. 
 (f)  To meet the requirements of 40 CFR 280.20, all tanks and product piping that are installed or 
replaced as part of an underground storage tank system on or after January 1, 2017 shall be secondarily 
contained and use interstitial monitoring in accordance with 40 CFR 280.43(g). 
 
R311-203-7.  Operator Inspections. 
 (a)  Owners and operators shall perform periodic inspections in accordance with 40 CFR 280.36.  
Inspections shall be conducted by or under the direction of the designated Class B operator.  The Class B 
operator shall ensure that documentation of each inspection is kept and made available for review by the 
Director. 



 (b)  The individual who conducts inspections to meet the requirements of 40 CFR 280.36(a)(1) or 
(a)(3) shall use the form "UST Operator Inspection- Utah" or another form approved by the Director. 
 (c)  [The Director may allow operator inspections to be performed less frequently in situations where 
it is impractical to conduct an inspection every 30 days.  The owner or operator shall request the exemption, 
justify the reason for the exemption, and submit a plan for conducting operator inspections at the facility. 
 (d)  ]An UST facility whose tanks are properly temporarily closed according to 40 CFR 280.70 and 
R311-204-4 shall have an annual operator inspection. 
 ([e]d)  An owner or operator who conducts visual checks of tank top containment sumps and under 
dispenser containment sumps for compliance with piping leak detection in accordance with 40 CFR 280.43(g) 
shall conduct the visual checks monthly and report the results on the operator inspection form. 
 
R311-203-8.  Unattended facilities. 
 (a)  A facility that normally has no employee or other responsible person on site, or is open to 
dispense fuel at times when no employee or responsible person is on site, shall have: 
 (1)  a sign posted in a conspicuous place, giving the name and telephone number of the facility owner, 
operator, or local emergency responders, and 
 (2)  an emergency shutoff device in a readily accessible location, if the facility dispenses fuel. 
 
KEY:  fees, hazardous substances, petroleum, underground storage tanks 
Date of Enactment or Last Substantive Amendment:  February 14, 2011 
Notice of Continuation:  April 10, 2012 
Authorizing, and Implemented or Interpreted Law:  19-6-105; 19-6-403; 19-6-408 
 
 



 

WASTE MANAGEMENT AND RADIATION CONTROL BOARD 

Executive Summary 

REQUEST FOR A SITE-SPECIFIC TREATMENT VARIANCE 

EnergySolutions LLC 

November 10, 2016 

What is the issue before the Board? 

This is a request from EnergySolutions LLC for a one-time site-specific 

treatment variance from the Utah Hazardous Waste Management Rules 

to receive and treat cemented uranium extraction process residues for 

disposal. 

What is the historical background or 

context for this issue?  

The Mixed Waste Facility proposes to receive up to 600 cubic feet of 

cemented monoliths.  This waste retains hazardous waste codes for 

barium, cadmium, chromium, lead and spent solvents.  The generator has 

encapsulated the waste in concrete for security reasons. 

 

EnergySolutions proposes to treat this waste by macroencapsulation in 

the Mixed Waste Landfill Cell rather than perform chemical 

stabilization, as required.  This request is based on the fact that the waste 

has already been encapsulated in concrete at the generator’s site.  

Treating this waste by the required method would mean grinding the 

waste and potentially exposing workers to unnecessary contamination. 

 

The proposed treatment will further encapsulate the waste and protect it 

from contact with precipitation, thereby decreasing the potential of 

leaching.   

 

A notice for public comment was published in The Salt Lake Tribune, 

The Deseret News and The Tooele County Transcript Bulletin.   

 

The comment period began November 8, 2016 and will end December 7, 

2016.   

What is the governing statutory or 

regulatory citation? 

Variances are provided for in 19-6-111 of the Utah Solid and Hazardous 

Waste Act.  This is a one-time site-specific variance from an applicable 

treatment standard as allowed by R315-268.44 of the Utah 

Administrative Code. 

Is Board action required? No, this is an information item before the Board.   

What is the Division/Director’s 

recommendation? 
The Director will provide a recommendation at the next Board meeting. 

Where can more information be 

obtained? 

For technical questions, please contact Otis Willoughby (801) 536-0220.  

For legal questions, please contact Raymond Wixom at (801) 536-0290. 

 

DSHW-2016-014062 

Attachment: DSHW-2016-013913 



October 27, 2016

EnergySolutions

Div of Waste Management 
and Radiation Control '

OCT 27,201$

DSM/- 2016-013^13
CD 16-0216

Mr. Scott T. Anderson 

Director

Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control

195 North 1950 West

Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4880

Subject: EPA ID Number UTD982598898 ^

received
OCT 2 7 2016
D.-PAR7i.itf\|T OF 

ENVIRO'JMi'NTAL QUALITY

Request for a Site-Specific Treatment Variance for Cemented Uranium 

Extraction Process Residues

Dear Mr. Anderson:

EnergySolutiom hereby requests an exemption from the treatment standards described in 

Utah Administrative Code (UAC) R315-40(a)(2) for uranium extraction process residuals 

that retain the hazardous waste codes D005 (barium); D006 (cadmium); D007 

(chromium); D008 (lead); D030 (2,4-dinitrotoluene); D032 (hexachlorobenzene) and 

F001, F002, and F005 (spent solvents) and are encased in cement. This exemption is 

requested for the purposes of safety, security, and transportation of the radioactive waste.

This request is submitted in accordance with the requirements of UAC R315-260-19.

The regulatory requirement for this request is found in UAC R315-268-44 which allows a 

site-specific variance from an applicable treatment standard provided the following 

condition is met:

UAC R315-268-44(h)(2) It is inappropriate to require the waste to be 

treated to the level specified in the treatment standard, or by the method 

specified as the treatment standard, even though such treatment is 

technically possible.

This variance is being requested for approximately 600 cubic feet of cemented uranium 

extraction process residuals from Energy Solutions generator 9061-06. The waste is 

generated as part of a uranium recovery process that involves creating an enriched 

uranium contaminated ash through a thermal process and then recovering the enriched 

uranium through an organic solvent extraction process. The residual waste from this 

extraction system is collected in small cans (~ 2 Vi gallons each) and stored at the 

generator's facility. The process residuals within these cans are in the form of an ash 

generated through this process. The process residuals within the cans have been 

characterized through a random sampling and analysis process. At the beginning of this

299 South Main Street, Suite 1700 • Salt Lake City, UT 84111 
www energysolutions.com



En ergySowtions

campaign, approximately 2,000 cans of process residues were collected and stored by the 

generator. The process is ongoing and additional cans are being generated every year. 

Further, due to safety concerns, some of the cans are being split prior to the repackaging 

process described below; thereby generating more total material for disposal than 

originally anticipated.

F-listed solvent codes within this waste are derived from rags that are burned in a furnace 

in order to recover the uranium present within them. None of the F-listed constituents 

were present above Universal Treatment Standard (UTS) concentrations within the 

random characterization samples of the process residues. The random characterization 

samples were also analyzed for metals using the Toxicity Characteristic Leaching 

Procedure (TCLP). These samples detected elevated concentrations of barium (up to 

6,740 mg/L TCLP), cadmium (up to 16.4 mg/L TCLP), chromium (up to 15.2 mg/L 

TCLP), and lead (up to 10.5 mg/L TCLP). Based on these elevated metal concentrations, 

the characteristic waste codes D005, D006, D007, and D008 were applied to the process 

residue. Slightly elevated concentrations of 2,4-dinitrotoluene (D030) and 

hexachlorobutadiene (D032) were also detected in separate analyses. The residue may 

potentially contain these codes also.

The uranium content within the process residues is enriched. From a health and safety 

standpoint, the enrichment makes the waste more hazardous to employees managing the 

waste. Further, enriched material has increased security concerns and must be managed 

appropriately. To ensure the enriched uranium concentration limits required for worker 

safety, security, and transportation of this waste are met, appropriate packaging 

procedures were created and are currently being utilized at the generator’s facility. These 

packaging procedures include repackaging the cans into 16-gallon drums and filling the 

void spaces with cement; formal treatment for the elevated metals concentrations is not 

performed during this process. The generator has assessed other options, including 

treatment for the hazardous constituents; however, additional processing introduced 

unacceptable hazards from a health and safety, and security viewpoint. Additionally, the 

waste within the cans is inherently safe from a criticality aspect and the generator 

concluded that it is unwise to perfonn extra processing that could potentially change this 

aspect. Furthermore, encasing enriched uranium within concrete is the preferred method 

of stabilization as recommended by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC). The 

waste material packaged in these 16-gallon monolithic forms is inherently safe and is the 

fonn that will be shipped and received at the EnergySolutions Clive facility.

Mr. Scott Anderson

October 27, 2016

CD 16-0216

Page 2



EnergySolutions

Mr. Scott Anderson

October 27, 2016

CD 16-0216

Page 3

The characteristic hazardous waste codes associated with the process residues has 

numerical concentration-based treatment standards based upon the leachability of the 

contaminants. Treatment of the monolithic form for these concentration-based treatment 

standards would entail a process that includes shredding of the monolith followed by 

mixing with a stabilizing reagent in a pennitted mixer. Both of these steps could 

mobilize the enriched uranium and possibly cause airborne contamination, increasing the 

potential for releases to the environment as well as the potential for personnel exposure; 

thereby violating radiation protection (ALARA) principles. Also, the shredding of the 

solidified uranium ash results in a more accessible fonn of enriched uranium with 

potential security ramifications.

EnergySolutions proposes to macroencapsulate the waste, thereby isolating the waste 

from potential leaching media. Macroencapsulation is a pennitted process utilized at the 

Clive facility that significantly reduces the potential for migration (leaching) of waste. 

Macroencapsulation requires less handling of the waste and creates a waste fonn for 

disposal that is protective of human health and the enviromnent. Macroencapsulation 

also adds a further level of security to access of the enriched uranium.

In summary, a variance should be granted based upon three considerations:

1. for both health and security reasons, enriched uranium concentration within 

the waste precludes actual treatment of the waste;

2. processing this waste in preparation for stabilization treatment would increase 

worker exposures and the potential for releases to the enviromnent; and

3. the leachability of the waste would be significantly reduced through 

macroencapsulation, thereby protecting human health and the environment.

Energy Solutions requested this same variance for this generator in letters dated July 20, 

2007, July 28, 2008, July 15, 2009, July 15, 2010, July 28, 2011, August 13, 2012, July 

15, 2013, July 25, 2015, and November 4, 2015. These previous requests were approved 

on September 13, 2007, September 13, 2008, September 10, 2009, September 9, 2010, 

September 8, 2011, September 13, 2012, September 12, 2013, August 14, 2014, and 

December 10, 2015.



ENERGYS0Z.lt/0AS

Mr. Scott Anderson

October 27, 2016

CD 16-0216

Page 4

Shipments began in April, 2008 and have been relatively continuous since that time. 

Since the last variance was approved, EnergySo/w/zons has received approximately 500 

cubic feet of this waste (the 16-gallon monoliths). EnergySoJutions has received 

approximately 7,600 cubic feet of this waste since the first variance approval in 2008. 

This variance request is for the ongoing processing and disposal of additional uranium 

extraction process residues created by the generator.

EnergySb/wt/oMs requests that a variance be granted to allow the receipt, 

macroencapsulation treatment and disposal of approximately 600 cubic feet of cemented 

uranium extraction process residuals that retain hazardous waste codes.

Upon approval of this variance, the monolithic waste will be managed as debris.

The name, phone number, and address of the person who should be contacted to notify 

EnexgySolutiom of decisions by the Director is:

Mr. Vem C. Rogers

Manager, Compliance and Permitting

Energy Solutions EEC

299 South Main Street, Suite 1700

Salt Lake City, UT84111

(801)649-2000

Should there be any questions to this request, please contact me at 801-649-2144.

Sincerely,

Timothy L. Orton, P.E. 

Environmental Engineer

cc: Don Verbica, DWMRC

I certify under penalty of law that tins document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system 

designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who 

manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is. to the best of my knowledge and 

belief, true, accurate, and complete I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and 

imprisonment for knowing violations



DSHW-2016-013993 

DRC-2016-010559 

 1 

WASTE MANAGEMENT AND RADIATION CONTROL BOARD 

Executive Summary 

EnergySolutions Petition for Rulemaking 

November 10, 2016 

What is the issue before the 

Board?  

On October 12, 2016, EnergySolutions submitted a petition to initiate 

rulemaking to repeal Utah Administrative Code (UAC) R313-25 and 

reenact UAC R313-25 by incorporating 10 CFR 61 by reference.  (A copy 

of the Petition is included in the November 10, 2016 Board Packet). 

What is the historical background 

or context for this issue? 

The Utah Administrative Rulemaking Act (Utah Code Ann. 63G-3-101, et 

seq.) provides that an interested person/party may petition a rulemaking 

agency to make, amend, or repeal a rule.  (Utah Code Ann. 63G-3-601(2))  

The Utah Administrative Code (UAC) establishes additional requirements 

for rulemaking petitions.  (See R15-2.) 

 

REQUIRED BOARD ACTIONS (Utah Code Ann. 63G-3-601(6),  R15-

2-3 & R15-2-5) 

As the “agency” that has been granted rulemaking authority by the 

Legislature, the Board is required to: 

 Record the date the petition is received; 

 Review and consider the petition; 

 Within 45 days of the submission of the petition, place the petition 

on its agenda for review; 

 Within 80 days of the submission of the petition, write a response 

to the petitioner stating either: 

o the petition is denied and the reasons for denial; or 

o the date when the Board is initiating rulemaking 

proceedings consistent with the intent of the petition. 

 Retain the petition and a copy of the Board's response as part of 

the administrative record; and 

 Mail copies of its decision to all persons who petitioned for a rule 

change.  

 

Additionally, the Board may (R15-2-5(2)): 

 Interview the petitioner; 

 Hold a public hearing on the petition; or 

 Take any action the Board, in its judgment, deems necessary to 

provide the petition due consideration. 

What is the governing statutory or 

regulatory citation? 
Utah Code Ann. 63G-3-601 and Utah Administrative Code R15-2. 

Is Board action required? 
No.  This is an informational item only.  The Board is only being notified 

of the petition as required by statute. 

What is the Division Director’s 

recommendation? 

The petition raises significant issues that require detailed analysis and 

discussion.  The Director will make a recommendation in the 

December Board Meeting. 



DSHW-2016-013993 

DRC-2016-010559 

 2 

Where can more information be 

obtained? 

Questions may be directed to Ralph Bohn at (801) 536-0212 or 

Rusty Lundberg at (801) 536-4257. 

 



EnergySolutions
Div of Waste Management

and Radiation Control

OCT 1 3 2016

October 12, 2016

received

OCT 1 2 2016
CD 16-0207

Mr. Scott T. Anderson 
Executive Secretary
Utah Board of Waste Management and Radiation Control
195 North 1950 West
Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-4880

DRC-^OIk-OlOSS^

Subject: Utah Administrative Code R313-25; Petition to Initiate Rulemaking 

Mr. Anderson:

Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 63G-3-601, EnergySolutions hereby submits a Petition to 
Initiate Rulemaking to the Waste Management and Radiation Control Board (Board) to 
repeal and reenact Utah Administrative Code (UAC) R313-25 and adopt by reference 10 
CFR Part 61. As promulgated in § 63G-3-601, the Board is required to place this Petition 
on its agenda for review and either initiate rulemaking proceedings or deny the petition in 
writing within 60 days of submittal of the petition. As such, this letter sets forth the 
statement of the jurisdiction of the Board to consider this Petition to repeal and reenact 
UAC R313-25, as required by Utah Code Ann. § 63G-3-601(4) and explains the basis for 
the Petition.

The Petition to repeal and reenact UAC R313-25 is within the jurisdiction of the Board 
under Utah Code Annotated § 19-3-104(4) which authorizes the Board to make rules “to 
meet the requirements of federal law relating to radiation control to ensure the radiation 
control program under this part is qualified to maintain primacy from the federal 
government. ” The proposed Petition brings UAC R313-25 into alignment with 
corresponding U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules. Specifically, the 
Petition proposes replacement of UAC R313-25 and adoption of Chapter 61 of Title 10 
from the Code of Federal Regulations by reference. This action will assure that as 10 
CFR Part 61 is amended (amendments are currently under consideration), the Utah rules 
will automatically be in compliance with federal rules, without further Board action. 
Additionally, this proposed Petition will bring the Division into compliance with Senate

The primary purpose and reasoning for Energy Solutions Petition is as follows:

1. Senate Bill 173 was signed into law on March 31, 2015. Utah Code Ann. § 63G- 
3-301(13)(b) requires the Division to “initiate rulemaking proceedings no later

Bill 173.

Page 1 of 6



: EnergySolutions ■

than 180 days after the effective date of the statutory provision that specifically 
requires the rulemaking’'. The Petition’s proposed revisions address the 
requirements of Senate Bill 173 and bring the Board into compliance with these 
statutory requirements.

2. The current UAC R313-25 rules, adopted by the legacy Board of Radiation 
Control (dissolved and replaced in 2015 with the Board of Waste Management 
and Radiation Control), are “more stringent” than corresponding federal 
regulations. These rules, therefore, are not in compliance with Utah Code Ann. § 
19-3-104(7)(a), as the adoption of these rules did not following the requirements 
found in Utah Code Ann. § 19-3-104(8)(a). This creates undo and illegal 
regulatory burden on EnexgySolutions and should be remedied by the current 
Board. The proposed repeal and reenactment of UACR313-25 and adoption by 
reference of 10 CFR Part 61 will assure that state rules are consistent with, but not 
more stringent than the corresponding federal rules.

Below is the statutory language that governs rulemaking, followed by specific examples 
of how the requirements of UAC R313-25 are more stringent than corresponding federal 
regulations.

Utah Code Annotated § 19-3-104(7)(a) states:

“Except as provided in Subsection (8), and in accordance with Title 63 G, Chapter 
3, Utah Administrative Ridemaking Act, the board may not adopt rules, for the 
purpose of the state assuming responsibilities from the United States Nuclear 
Resulatoiy Commission with respect to resulation of sources of ionizins 
radiation, that are more stringent than the correspondins federal regulations 
which address the same circumstances." [emphasis added)

Similarly, Utah Code Annotated § 19-5-105(5) states:

“Except as provided in Subsections (2) and (3), no rule that the board makes for 
the purpose of the state administering a program under the federal Clean Water 
Act or the federal Safe Drinking Water Act may be more strinsent than the 
correspondins federal regulations which address the same circumstances. In 
making rules, the board may incorporate by reference corresponding federal 
regulations." [emphasis added 1



:EmRG¥SOLUTIONS-

Specific examples of where the regulations in UAC R313-25 are more stringent than the 
corresponding federal regulations include:

1. UAC R313-25-2: Federal regulatory definition of an Inadvertent intruder in 10 
CFR 61.2 is considered a person "who might occupy the disposal site after closure 
and engage in normal activities...” By comparison, UAC R313-25-2 considers 
an Inadvertent Intruder as “a person who may enter the disposal site after closure 
and engage in activities unrelated to post closure management...” Design and 
performance requirements to protect individuals from inadvertently “entering” 
and “engaging in activities unrelated to post closure management” at the disposal 
site are significantly more stringent than those required to protect inadvertent 
occupation of the disposal site “and engage in normal activity”.

2. UAC R313-25-9: Federal regulations promulgated in 10 CFR 61.13 Technical 
Analyses require licensees to provide specific technical information demonstrating 
(a) protection of the general population, (b) protection of individuals from 
inadvertent intrusion, (c) protection of individuals during operations, and (d) long
term stability of the disposal site without ongoing active maintenance. UAC
R313-25-9 includes additional requirements. In UAC R313-25-9(1) through 
UAC R313-25-9(3) and UAC R313-25-9(5) there are requirements to perform 
site-specific analysis for waste not included in the Draft Enviromnental Impact 
Statement for Class A waste, or additional analyses if the waste is likely to result 
in greater than 10% of the dose limits in UAC R313-25-19 in the time period 
when peak dose would occur. This additional analysis is more stringent than 
required by corresponding federal regulations. In promulgating UAC R313-25-9, 
the board did not make a finding as per UAC 19-3-1048(a) and (b) allowing more 
stringent rules.

3. UAC R313-25-20: Federal regulations require a licensee’s demonstration of the 
protection of the general population to an “annual dose exceeding an equivalent 
of 25 millirems to the whole body, 75 millirems to the thyroid, and 25 millirems to 
any other organ of any member of the public.” 10 CFR 61.41. By comparison, 
UAC R313-25-20 more stringently requires demonstration that “[n]o greater than 
0.04 mSv (0.004 rem) committed effective dose equivalent or total effective dose 
equivalent to any member of the public shall come from groundwater.” 4

4. UAC R313-25-27(4): In addition to several requirements associated with 
enviromnental monitoring, UAC R313-25-27(4) requires licensees to demonstrate 
that they have additional plans not required by NRC.



5. UAC R313-25: By not incorporating NRC requirement 10 CFR 61.58 into 
UACR313-25, Utah licensees are held to more stringent standards because NRCs 
alternative requirements for waste classification and characteristics are not 
available.

6. UAC R313-25-33: requires licensees to maintain original, reproduced copies, or 
microfilm records, while 10 CFR 61.80 acknowledges and incorporates 
technological advances in record archival by amending 10 CFR 61.80(c) with

“The record may also be stored in electronic media with the capability for 
producing legible, accurate, and complete records during the required 
retention period. Records such as letters, drawings, specifications, must 
include all pertinent information such as stamps, initials, arid signatures. 
The licensee shall maintain adequate safeguards against tampering with 
and loss of records.”

As part of its current 10 CFR Part 61 rulemaking, NRC has deemed the current Part 61 
rules as protective to human health and the environment. This has been stated by the 
NRC in various stages of the rulemaking, and was specifically stated by the NRC in 
letters to the Utah Division of Radiation Control, dated January 21, 20101 and August 6, 
20102. The State of Utah has not met the requirements found in Utah Code Annotated § 

19-3-104(8), specifically § 19-3-104(8)(b) which requires the State to publish the 
evaluation of the public health and environmental information and studies that form the 
basis for rules that are more stringent than the Federal counterpart.

A secondary and more pragmatic reason for the repeal of the rules are the significant 
changes to 10 CFR Part 61 currently being promulgated by the NRC. While not final, the 
Board will be required to make significant changes to UAC R313-25 in order to conform 
to the new revision of Part 61. It would be prudent to adopt 10 CFR Part 61 in total so 
that the more extensive Part 61 changes can be incorporated by reference.

1 Reis, Terence. “NRC Review of Proposed Changes to the Utah Regulations R313-25-8” Letter from 
Terrence Reis, Deputy Director of the Division of Material Safety and State Agreements, U.S. Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission to Dane L. Finerfrock, Director of the Utah Division of Radiation Control, 
January 21, 2010.

2 Reis, Terence. “NRC Review of the Final Changes to the Utah Regulations R313-25-8” Letter from 
Terrence Reis, Deputy Director of the Division of Material Safety and State Agreements, U.S. Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission to Rusty Lundberg, Executive Secretary of the Utah Division of Radiation 
Control, August 6, 2010.



■EHmGYSOLUTIONS-

Rule repeal and reenactment with reference to comparable federal requirement has been a 
long-standing common practice by the Board. For example, in March 2016, the Board 
approved commencement of a Notice of Continuation (five-year review) of Utah 
Administrative Code R315. At the conclusion of its review, the Board fully repealed 
Hazardous Waste Rules R315-1, R315-2, R315-3, R315-4, R315-5, R315-6, R315-7, 
R315-8, R315-9, R315-12, R315-13, R315-14, R315-16, and R315-50 and then replaced 
them with reference to corresponding U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
requirements.

This Petition to repeal UAC R313-25 and reenact it with reference to 10 CFR 61 also 
addresses changes made in the 2013 Utah Legislature to UAC R313-25-6 via House Bill 
124. That language has been retained in the replacement text proposed in the attached 
pages. Revisions to the statutory and regulatory requirements of House Bill 124 have 
been amended to be consistent with the approval process promulgated for State-issued 
Part B Permit modification requests in Utah Administrative Code R315-270-42(b)(6)(iii) 
(which is equivalent to U.S. EPA regulations in 40 CFR 270.42(b)(6)(iii)). This 
hazardous waste permit modification provision allows that il[i]f the Director fails to make 
one of the decisions...by the 120th day after receipt of the modification request, the 
permittee is automatically authorized to conduct the activities described...” Without an 
equivalent provision in UAC R313-25, there is no controlling provision enforcing the 
licensing action time requirements currently promulgated in UAC R313-25-6 (rendering 
the statutory provisions revised by House Bill 124 in 2013 ineffectual). Similarly, 
changes created by the 2015 Utah Legislature to UAC R313-25-31 via Senate Bill 173 
have been retained in the reenactment text hereto attached.

Should the Board deny this Petition to repeal and reenact UAC R313-25 as currently 
promulgated, En&igySolutions requests that the Board prepare “a reasoned justification 
for continuation of the rule, including reasons why the [Board] disagrees with comments 
in opposition to the rule, ” as required by Utah Code Annotated § 63G-3-305. I look 
forward to working with the Board on this Petition.



: ENESGYSOLUTIONS :

Please contact me at 801-649-2000 if there are any comments or questions. 

Sincerely,

Dan Shrum 
Oct 12 2016 2:26 PM

Daniel B. Shrum 
Senior Vice President 
Regulatory Affairs

cc: Ralph Bohn, DWMRC
Rusty Lundberg, DWMRC

Enclosure



MwgySolutions

Request to Initiate Rulemaking to R313-25

Utah Code Ann. § 6303-601(4) requires: “A statement shall accompany the proposed 
rule, or proposed amendment or repeal of a rule, demonstrating that the proposed 
action is within the jurisdiction of the agency and appropriate to the powers of the 
agency.”

The petitioned repeal and reenactment of Utah Administrative Code (UAC) R313-25 is 
within the jurisdiction of.the Board under Utah Code Annotated §§ 19-1-106 and 19-3- 
104(4). Under those provisions of the Radiation Control Act, the Board may make rules 
“that are necessary to implement the provisions of the Radiation Control Act” (§19-6- 
104(l)(a)), to control exposure to sources of radiation (§193-104(4)(a)), and to meet 
federal legal requirements to ensure that the Utah radiation control program is qualified 
to maintain primacy from the federal government (§ 19-3-104(4)(b)).

The petitioned repeal and reenactment brings R313-25 into alignment with the 
requirements of Senate Bill 173, signed into law on March 31, 2015. Utah Code 
Annotated §63G-3-301(13)(b) requires the Division to “initiate rulemaking proceedings 
not later than 180 days after the effective date of the statutory provisions that specifically 
requires the rulemaking”. The proposed reenactment addresses Senate Bill 173 and 
brings the Board into compliance with these statutory requirements and corresponding 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC”) requirement.

Finally, the petitioned repeal and reenactment brings UAC R313-25 into compliance with 
Utah Code Annotated §§ 19-3-104(7) and (8), which prohibits the adoption by the Board 
of any “rules, for the purpose of the state assuming responsibilities from the United 
States Nuclear Regulatoty Commission with respect to sources of ionizing radiation, that 
are more stringent than the corresponding federal regulations which address the same 
circumstances” unless the Board “makes a written finding after public comment and 
hearing and based on evidence in the record that corresponding federal regulations are 
not adequate to protect public health and the environment of the state.” The petitioned 
repeal and reenactment will reduce the circumstances under which a licensee will be 
required to comply with requirements that are more stringent than those found in the 
corresponding NRC regulations or policies.

Paee 1 of 9



■EmRGYSOLUTIONS-

Replacement of UAC R313-25 with Reference to 10 CFR 61

R313. Environmental Quality, Waste Management and Radiation Control, Radiation. 
R313-25. License Requirements for Land Disposal of Radioactive Waste - General 
Provisions.

For the purposes of Rule R313-25, 10 CFR 61.1(a) through 60.54 and 61.56(a) through 
61.84 are incorporated by reference with the following clarifications or exceptions:

(1) The substitution of the following:

(a) "Director" for reference to "Commission"

(b) "Rule R313-24-4"for reference to "§ 40.4 (a-1)" in 10 CFR 61.1(b)(2)

(c) "Rule R313-15" for references to "part 20"

(d) "Division enforcement action" for references to "NRC enforcement action"

(e) "Division enforcement action" for references to "NRC enforcement action"

(f) "Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control" for references to "Office 
of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission."

(g) "State of Utah" for references to "United States of America"

(h) "Director, Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control, 195 North 
1950 West, Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-4880 " for references to " Document Control 
Desk; Director, Office of Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards, U.S. 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001; by hand delivery to 
the NRCs Offices at 11555 Rockville Pike, Rockville, Maryland"

(i) "Attorney General" for references to "General Counsel"

O') "Rule R313-37" for references to "Part 73"

(k) "Rule R313-15-1009" for references to "10CFR61.55"

Page 2 of 9



energySolutions ■

(l) "§ 61.6(a)" for references to "§ 61.6"

(m) "Disposal site means that portion of a land disposal facility which is licensed for 
disposal of waste. It consists of disposal units and a buffer zone." for reference in § 
61.2 to "Disposal site means that portion of a land disposal facility which is used for 
disposal of waste. It consists of disposal units and a buffer zone."

(2) Delete the following:

(a) "as provided for in part 60 or 63 of this chapter" from 10 CFR 61.1(b)(1)

(b) "Commission means the Nuclear Regulatory Commission or its duly authorized 
representatives" from 10 CFR 61.2

(c) 10 CFR 61.8(a)

(3) Insert the following as § 61.6(b). Director Review of Application:

"(1) Unless the Director determines that there is sufficient technical or regulatory 
justification for a denial, the Director shall review and approve each approval application 
within the time allotted to determine that it complies with applicable statutory and regulatory 
requirements. Approval applications will be categorized as Category 1, 2, 3 and 4 
applications, as provided in § 61.6(b)(2) through (5). Absent denial by the Director, the 
approval application shall be judged as having been approved at the expiration of the 
applicable allotted review time.

(2) Category 1 applications.

(a) A Category 1 application is an application that:

(i) is administrative in nature;

(ii) requires limited scrutiny by the Director; and

(iii) does not require public comment.

(b) Examples of a Category 1 application include an application to:

(i) correct typographical errors;

Page 3 of 9



(ii) Change the name, address, or phone number of persons or agencies 
identified in the license or permit;

(iii) change the procedures or location for maintaining records;

(iv) Director’s financial assurance determinations of financial assurance cost 
estimates prepared in accordance with R313-25-32(1 )(d)(ii)(B); or

(v) extend the date for compliance with a permit or license requirement by 
no more than 120 days.

(c) (i) The Director shall complete review of a Category 1 application within a
Category 1 application’s allotted review time of 30 days after the day on 
which the Director Receives the application.

(ii) The period described in § 61.6(b)(2)(c)(i) shall not be tolled.

(3) Category 2 applications:

(a) A Category 2 application is one that is not a Category 1, 3 or 4 application.

(b) Examples of a Category 2 application include:

(i) Increase in process, storage, or disposal capacity

(ii) Change engineering design, construction, or process controls;

(iii) Approve a proposed corrective action plan;

(iv) Director’s financial assurance determinations of financial assurance cost 
estimates prepared in accordance with R313-25-32(l)(d)(i) or R313-25-32- 
(l)(d)(ii)(A); or

(iv) Transfer direct control of a license or groundwater permit.

(c) (i) The Director shall complete review of a Category 2 application within a 
Category 2 application’s allotted review time of 180 days after the day on 
which the Director receives the application.

Page 4 of 9



■ENEMGYSOLUTIONS:

(ii) The period described in § 61.6(b)(3)(c)(i) shall be tolled as provided in § 
61.6(b)(7).

(4) Category 3 applications.

(a) Category 3 application is an application for:

(i) a radioactive waste license renewal;

(ii) a groundwater permit renewal;

(iii) an amendment to an existing radioactive waste license or groundwater 
permit to allow a new disposal cell;

(iv) an amendment to an existing radioactive waste license or groundwater 
pennit that would allow the facility to eliminate groundwater monitoring; or

(v) approval of a radioactive waste disposal facility closure plan.

(b) (i) The Director shall complete review of a Category 3 application within a 
Category 3 application’s allotted review time of 365 days after the day on 
which the Director receives the application.

(ii) The period described in § 61.6(b)(4)(b)(i) shall be tolled as provided in § 
61.6(b)(7).

(5) Category 4 applications.

(a) A Category 4 application is an application for:

(i) a new radioactive waste license; or

(ii) a new groundwater permit.

(b) (i) The Director shall complete review of a Category 4 application within a 
Category 4 application’s allotted review time of 540 days after the day on 
which the Director receives the application.

Page 5 of 9



■EnergySolutions-

(ii) The period described in § 61.6(b)(5)(b)(i) shall be tolled as provided in § 
61.6(b)(7).

(6) (a) Within 60 days after the day on which the Director receives a Category 2, 3 or 4 
approval application, the Director shall determine whether tire application is 
complete and contains all the information necessary to process it for approval and 
make a finding by issuance of a written:

(i) notice of completeness to the applicant; or

(ii) notice of deficiency to the applicant, including a list of the additional 
information necessary to complete the application.

(b) The Director shall review written information submitted in response to a notice 
of deficiency within 30 days after the day on which the Director receives the 
supplemental information and shall again follow the procedures specified in § 
61.6(b)(1)(a).

(c) If a document that is submitted as an application is substantially deficient, the 
Director may determine that it does not qualify as an application. Any such 
detennination shall be made within 45 days of the document's submission and will 
include the Director's written findings.

(7) Tolling Periods. The periods specified for the Director's review and approval or denial 
under § 61.6(b)(3)(c)(i), (4)(b)(i), and (5)(b)(i) shall be tolled:

(a) while an owner or operator of a facility responds to the Director's request for 
information;

(b) during a public comment period not to exceed 60 calendar days; and

(c) while the federal government reviews the application.

(8) Before expiration of the allotted review time, the Director shall prepare a detailed written 
explanation of the technical and regulatory basis for the Director's approval or denial of an 
approval application. If absent such written explanation at the expiration of the allotted 
review time, an approval application will be deemed as having been approved without 
finding."

Page 6 of 9



(4) Insert the following as § 61.62. Funding for Disposal Site Closure and Stabilization:

(1) The applicant shall provide assurances prior to the commencement of operations that 
sufficient funds will be available to carry out disposal site closure and stabilization, 
including:

(a) decontamination or dismantlement of land disposal facility structures and 
disturbed lands in all areas subject to the licensed or pennitted portions of the 
facility, and

(b) closure and stabilization of the licensed disposal embankment(s) so that 
following transfer of the disposal site to the site owner, the need for ongoing active 
maintenance is eliminated to the extent practicable and only minor custodial care, 
surveillance, and monitoring are required. The Director shall annually make a 
financial assurance determination that the approved cost estimates reflect the 
Director approved plan for the licensed disposal unit(s) closure and stabilization and 
decontamination or dismantlement of land disposal facility structures in all areas 
subject to the licensed or permitted portions of the facility. The applicant's cost 
estimates shall take into account total costs that would be incurred if an independent 
contractor were hired to perform the closure and stabilization work.

(c) dismantlement and final license approved radiation survey of above-ground 
facility structures not subject to the licensed or permitted portions of the facility, as 
determined by mutual agreement between the Director and the applicant, that may 
present an attractant nuisance for potential inadvertent intruders.

(d) At the option of the applicant, the cost estimates shall be based on:

(i) an annual calculation using the most recent edition of RS Means Heavy 
Construction Cost Data and an indirect cost multiplier agreed upon between 
the applicant, licensee or permittee and the Director; or

(ii) (A) for an initial financial assurance cost estimation determination 
and for each financial assurance cost estimation at the time of license 
renewal thereafter, a certified competitive site-specific estimate to address 
the requirements ofR313-25-31(l)(a) through R313-25-31(c), where the 
preparer has certified that the financial assurance cost estimation has been 
prepared in confonnance with all applicable federal, state, and local 
requirements; and

Page 7 of 9



ENERGYSOLUTIONS'-

(B) for each year between the initial financial assurance cost estimate 
detennination and license renewal financial assurance cost estimate 
detennination found in Section R313-25-3l(l)(d)(ii)(A), an annual inflation 
adjustment to the previous year’s financial assurance cost estimation using 
the Gross Domestic Product Implicit Price Deflator of the Bureau of 
Economic Analysis, United States Department of Commerce, calculated by 
dividing the latest annual deflator by the deflator for the previous year and an 
Professional Engineering Analysis of significant changes in the licensed 
disposal unit(s) and other areas subject to the licensed or permitted portions 
of the facility.

(2) The Director will accept financial sureties that have been consolidated with earmarked 
financial or surety arrangements established to meet requirements of Federal or other State 
agencies or local governmental bodies for decontamination, closure, and stabilization. The 
Director will accept these arrangements only if they are considered adequate to satisfy the 
requirements of Section R313-25-31 and if they clearly identify that the portion of the surety 
which covers the closure of the licensed disposal unit(s) is clearly identified and committed 
for use in accomplishing these activities.

(3) The licensee's financial or surety mechanism shall be annually reviewed by the Director 
to assure that sufficient funds will be available for completion of the closure plan.

(4) The amount of the licensee's surety liability shall change in accordance with the 
predicted costs of future closure and stabilization. Factors affecting closure and stabilization 
cost estimates include inflation, increases in the amount of disturbed land, changes in 
engineering plans, closure and stabilization that have already been accomplished, and other 
conditions affecting costs. The financial or surety arrangement shall be sufficient at all 
times to cover the costs of closure and stabilization of the disposal unit(s) that are expected 
to be used before the next license renewal.

(5) The financial or surety arrangement shall be written for a specified period of time and 
shall be automatically renewed unless the person who issues the surety notifies the Director; 
the beneficiary, the site owner; and the principal, the licensee, not less than 90 days prior to 
the renewal date of its intention not to renew. In such a situation, the licensee shall submit a 
replacement surety within 30 days after notification of cancellation. If the licensee fails to 
provide a replacement surety acceptable to the Director, the beneficiary may collect on the 
original surety.

Page 8 of 9



■EnergySolutions ■

(6) Proof of forfeiture shall not be necessary to collect the surety so that, in the event that 
the licensee could not provide an acceptable replacement surety within the required time, the 
surety shall be automatically collected prior to its expiration. The conditions described 
above shall be clearly stated on surety instruments.

(7) Financial or surety arrangements generally acceptable to the Director include surety 
bonds, cash deposits, certificates of deposit, deposits of government securities, escrow 
accounts, irrevocable letters or lines of credit, trust funds, and combinations of the above or 
other types of arrangements as may be approved by the Director. Self-insurance, or an 
arrangement which essentially constitutes self-insurance, will not satisfy the surety 
requirement for private sector applicants.

(8) The licensee's financial or surety arrangement shall remain in effect until the closure and 
stabilization program has been completed and approved by the Director, and the license has 
been transferred to the site owner.

(9) If the Director and applicant do not agree on a financial assurance determination made 
by the Director, the licensee or permittee may appeal the determination in:

(a) an arbitration proceeding subject to Title 78B, Chapter 11, Utah Uniform 
Arbitration Act, with the costs of the arbitration split equally between the licensee or 
permittee and the Division, if both the licensee or permittee and the Director agree in 
writing to arbitration; or

(b) a special adjudicative proceeding under Title 19, Chapter 1, Section 301.5."

(5) Insert the following in § 61.2. Definitions:

"Disturbed lands" means the portions of the licensed disposal site other than disposal unit(s) 
that are not in native or natural form due to licensed or permitted operations.

"Financial assurance determination" means a decision on whether a facility, site, plan, party, 
broker, owner, operator, generator, or permittee has met financial assurance or financial 
responsibility requirements as detennined by the Director of the Division of Waste 
Management and Radiation Control under the authority of Title 19, Chapter 3.

Page 9 of 9



1 

WASTE MANAGEMENT AND RADIATION CONTROL BOARD 
Executive Summary 

Sensus SRT-100 Exemption 

November 10, 2016 
 

What is the issue before the 

Board? 

This is a request for an exemption for the Sensus SRT-100 machine from 

the requirements of R313-30-3(3), R313-30-3(4), R313-30-3(5), and 

R313-30-3(6) of the Utah Administrative Code. 

What is the historical background 

or context for this issue? 

The Sensus SRT-100 is a superficial radiation therapy machine for 

treatment of skin cancers and keloids.  It is a low radiation output unit that 

is used to treat two dimensional skin lesions.  The therapy rules, from 

which the exemption is being requested, are for the high radiation output 

machines used to treat three dimensional tumors within the body.  The 

training requirements, physics of positioning and dosing are quite different 

for the two types of treatment.  The Sensus exemption request, received 

July 28, 2016, is to enable dermatologists to own and operate this unit in 

their offices as an alternative to surgical removal of the skin lesions.   

A public comment period was held from September 28, 2016 to 

October 28, 2016.   

Several comments were received and are attached to this summary. 

What is the governing statutory or 

regulatory citation? 

In accordance with R313-12-55(1) of the Utah Administrative Code, the 

Board may, upon application or upon its own initiative, grant exemptions 

from the requirements of Rules R313-12 through 70 as it determines are 

authorized by law and will not result in undue hazard to public health and 

safety or the environment. 

Is Board action required? Yes. 

What is the Division Director’s 

recommendation? 

The Director recommends the Board grant an exemption for the Sensus SRT-

100 machine from the requirements of R313-30-3(3), R313-30-3(4), R313-30-

3(5), and R313-30-3(6) under the following conditions: 

 

 Sensus shall conduct training of dermatologists to allow them to 

be the Authorized User of the SRT-100; 

 Training shall be conducted using the training materials and 

duration described in the Sensus July 28, 2016 exemption request 

to the Director (DRC-2016-008950); 

 Sensus shall document the training by forwarding a Certificate of 

Training to the Director for each person trained; 

 Sensus shall notify the Director whenever a SRT-100 unit is sold 

in Utah (F2579). 

 The exemption shall expire upon Board adoption of rules for 

superficial radiation therapy requirements. 

 

Note: the SRT-100 falls under the radiation therapy facility inspection 

schedule which requires annual inspections. 

 



2 

Where can more information be 

obtained? 

Please contact Lisa Mechem, DVM, at (801) 536-4286 for further 

information. 

DSHW-2016-013861



Links has been created to assist you in navigating through this document: 

 

LETTER FROM SENSUS REQUESTING THE EXEMPTION 

 

COMMENTS FROM PATIENTS OR RELATIVES OF PATIENTS IN SUPPORT OF THE EXEMPTION 

 

COMMENTS FROM THE MEDICAL COMMUNITY IN SUPPORT OF THE EXEMPTION 

 

COMMENTS FROM THE MEDICAL COMMUNITY IN OPPOSITION TO EXEMPTION 

 

alovato
Highlight

alovato
Highlight

alovato
Highlight

alovato
Highlight



3 



4 



5 



6 



7 



8 



9 



10 



11 



12 



13 



14 



15 



16 



17 



18 



19 



20 



21 



22 



23 



24 



25 



26 



27 



28 



29 



30 



31 



32 



33 



34 



35 



36 



37 



38 



39 



40 



41 



42 



43 



44 



45 



46 



47 



48 



49 



50 



51 



Darrell S. Rigel, MD MS 
New York University Medical Center 

35 E 35th Street   Suite 208 
New York, NY  10016 

(212) 684 4542   rigeld01@nyumc.org  
 
 
Scott Anderson, Director  
Utah Division of Waste Management & Radiation Control 
P.O. Box 144880 
Salt Lake City, UT 84114 
T: (801) 536‐0200  
 

Re: Sensus Healthcare Exemption Request – Utah 

Dear Mr. Anderson, 

I am reaching out to you regarding the utilization of superficial radiation therapy for the 

treatment of skin cancers by dermatologists in the State of Utah. I am a Clinical Professor fo 

Dermatology at New York University and a board‐certified dermatologist by the American 

Board of Dermatology. I am a Fellow and an Honorary Member in the American Academy of 

Dermatology where I served as President in 1999. I have also served as President of the 

American Society for Dermatologic Surgery and American Dermatological Association.   

I received my MD degree from George Washington University. I attended Cornell University 

Medical Center for my Internship in Internal Medicine and completed my training at NYU where 

I was a Resident, Chief Resident, NIH Training Fellow and Dermatology Surgery Fellow. I have 

authored numerous articles and abstracts in professional journals as well as being lead editor of 

Cancer of the Skin, the major textbook in this field. I have testified before Congress regarding 

skin cancer and have made over 600 presentations at medical and governmental policy 

conferences worldwide and have chaired numerous national and international conferences and 

symposiums. I have also been a visiting Professor at the Huntsman Cancer Center in Salt Lake 

City.   

 

In regards to Superficial Radiation Therapy (SRT), dermatologists were at the forefront of 

developing and utilizing this modality long before there was ever a subspecialty of radiation 

oncology. This body of knowledge has been carried down over the last 50 years in multiple 

textbooks and articles. The efficacy rate of superficial x‐ray therapy has never been in dispute 

and is felt to be as good as or superior to electron beam therapy for the majority of skin 

cancers. Its usage is far less complex than electron beam therapy, that must be delivered by 

linear accelerators and used by radiation oncologists. Electron beam therapy is more powerful 

radiation and was originally designed and heralded as skin sparing (i.e. able to pass through the 

skin to treat deeper organs). In order to utilize electron beam on the skin, one needs to employ 

very complex physics, complex shielding and boluses (i.e. tissue like layers over the skin of 

varying thickness) to deposit an optimal dose at the skin surface.  



 

 

 

SRT has been proven very safe and effective, especially for elderly patients who are not good 

candidates for surgery (i.e. diabetes, thin/frail skin, and other co‐morbidities). SRT allows 

dermatologists to treat skin cancers on the face, scalp, neck, ears, and lower limbs with no 

deformity or scar. With surgical excision, poor healing and infections are not unusual. SRT will 

improve the quality of care that any dermatologist provides and will help elderly patients 

tremendously. SRT allows patients to continue their normal activities such as exercise and 

bathing and patients do not need to worry about anticoagulant therapy. SRT improves the 

experience of having a skin cancer treated and patients will seek out this therapy. 

SRT has also been proven cost‐effective, especially when one is dealing with elderly and frail 

individuals, where travel and cost are a factor. The typical course of SRT is under $2,000 

whereas a typical course of electron beam therapy is estimated to range from $6,000 ‐ $10,000. 

SRT is typically delivered in a physician’s office in 8‐12 fractions as compared to electron beam 

therapy which must be delivered in a specialized vault and typically utilizes 15‐30 fractions.  

In addition to SRT, dermatologists use multiple modalities on a daily basis where the physics of 

radiation come into effect (i.e. ultraviolet therapy, ultraviolet A, ultraviolet B, PUVA therapy, 

and various laser platforms). The latter modalities have very complex physics which 

dermatologists have pioneered and mastered. Dermatologists are more than capable of using 

SRT in a safe and effective manner when properly trained on the SRT device they are using.  

 

The State of Utah should allow dermatologists to utilize SRT technology in their offices. The 

United States has a rapidly aging population who are dealing with medical comorbidities and 

coagulation and SRT is a logical and cost‐effective alternative for treating skin cancer in 

appropriate patients.  

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this. Thank you.  

Sincerely,  

 

Darrell S. Rigel, MD MS 
Clinical Professor of Dermatology 
New York University Medical Center 
 



 

Scott Anderson, Director 
Utah Division of Waste Management & Radiation Control 
195 North 1950 West 
P.O. Box 144880 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-4880 
T: (801) 536-0200 
F: (801) 536-0222 
 
 
Re: Sensus Healthcare Exemption Request - Utah 
 
Dear Mr. Anderson, 
 
I've been asked to contact you regarding the utilization of superficial radiation 
therapy for the treatment of skin cancers by dermatologists in the state of Utah. By 
way of background, I am a board-certified dermatologist who has been practicing in 
South Florida for over 20 years. I am a President of the American Cutaneous 
Oncology Society (ACOS) as well as the past president of the Florida Society of 
Dermatology and Dermatologic Surgery.   
 
My clinical practice involves treating patients with a variety of dermatologic 
conditions, and my practice includes a large number of patients with skin cancers. I 
also conduct a significant number of clinical studies including a recently published 
study on the incidence of non-melanoma skin cancers. I utilize multiple modalities 
to treat skin cancers in order to assure that my patients receive the best care and 
have been using superficial radiation therapy (Sensus SRT-100™) in my practice for 
some time.  I received my initial training in the use of superficial radiation therapy 
in my residency and had additional further training prior to my beginning to use this 
device on our patients. I have treated hundreds of skin cancers with the SRT-100™ 
and I believe strongly that superficial radiation therapy is an extremely beneficial 
device for dermatology patients for a number of important reasons.  
 
As with most dermatology practices, we see a large number of patients who are 
elderly and have a variety of complicating and debilitating medical conditions. This 
is coupled with the fact that a significant portion of the patients are also taking one 
or more blood thinners. While dermatologists are extremely proficient at a variety 
of surgical techniques to treat skin cancers, not all of our patients are ideal 
candidates for our surgical intervention. In the past, we have referred patients to 



 

hospital centers for radiation therapy, but there have been problems and limitations 
with this approach.  Most, if not all radiation therapy treatment centers whether in 
the hospital or at outpatient facilities use equipment not specifically designed to 
treat skin cancers but instead primarily used to treat other types of cancers. The use 
of these high-powered devices for the treatment of most skin cancers is not only 
extremely expensive (both for the patient and for the health care system), but it can 
cause nonspecific damage to surrounding tissue. Additionally, patients often have 
significant problems with outpatient facilities and hospital facilities because of 
having to wait a significant amount of time to receive each treatment. Because of 
these and other issues, the number of patients willing to have radiation therapy and 
who had optimal outcomes declined significantly over the past number of years.  
 
The advent of equipment such as the Sensus SRT-100™, which is specifically 
designed to treat skin cancers in the dermatologist office, has dramatically benefited 
our patients in a number of ways. We are now able to treat patients using a type of 
radiation therapy that is specifically designed to treat skin cancers while leaving 
most normal tissue unaffected. This dramatically reduces both short-term and long-
term side effects associated with treatment and is a much less expensive modality 
both for the patient and the health care system. Additionally, because the treatments 
are performed in a simple outpatient manner in the dermatologist’s office, they can 
be performed in a very user-friendly, patient friendly, and time efficient way to 
optimize the experience and life quality for patients.  
 
In short, receiving surface radiation therapy in the dermatologist’s office provides a 
very beneficial modality to skin cancer patients that is clinically effective, safe, has a 
very low relative side effect profiles, is extremely cost-effective both for the patient 
and health care as a whole, and is certainly beneficial for the needs of the patients. 
For these reasons, I recommend the use of the SRT-100™ by dermatologists for of 
the citizens of the state of Utah. I believe that it is an important addition for their 
healthcare needs.  
 
Please call me if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Mark S. Nestor, M.D., Ph.D. 



52 



53 



54 



55 



56 



57 



58 



59 



60 



61 



62 



63 



64 



65 



66 



67 



68 



69 



70 



71 



72 



73 



74 



75 



76 



77 



78 

 


	II.  Approval of Meeting Minutes October 13, 2016
	IV. UST Rules
	V. ES Request for Site Specific Treatment Variance.Final
	V. ES request for Site Specific Treatment Variance
	DRC-2016-010559

	VI. XRay Program Exemption Request
	VII.  Administrative Rules ES Petition to Initiate Rulemaking
	VII.  Administrative Rules ES Petition to Initiate Rulemaking
	DRC-2016-010559

	VII.  Administrative Rules ES Petition to Initiate Rulemaking.pdf
	VII.  Administrative Rules ES Petition to Initiate Rulemaking
	DRC-2016-010559




